
 

ARIZONA STATE SENATE 
46TH LEGISLATURE 

FIRST REGULAR SESSION 
 

MINUTES OF COMMITTEE ON 
NATURAL RESOURCES AND TRANSPORTATION 

 
DATE:  March 25, 2003 TIME:   1:30 p.m. ROOM: SHR 1 

 
CHAIRMAN: Senator Binder VICE CHAIRMAN: Senator Jarrett 

  
ANALYST: Kerri Morey 

Sean Laux 
COMMITTEE  
SECRETARY:   

Tracey Moulton 

 
INTERN: Summer Woodson 

 
ASSISTANT 
ANALYST:                Tracey Landers 

 

 

ATTENDANCE BILLS 

 

Committee Members Pr Ab Ex Bill Number Disposition 
Senator Allen X   HB 2038 DPA/SE 
Senator Arzberger X   HB 2088 HELD 
Senator Blendu X   HB 2196 HELD 
Senator Brown X   HB 2267 DPA 
Senator Cannell X   HB 2328 DP 
Senator Jarrett, Vice Chairman X   HB 2381 DP 
Senator Binder, Chairman X   HB 2386 HELD 
    HB 2476 DP 
    HB 2478 DP 
    HB 2479 DP 
    HB 2480 DPA 

 
 

GOVERNOR’S APPOINTMENTS 
 

Name Position Recommendation 

Peter Michael Napier Member, Arizona Racing 
Commission 

RECOMMEND CONFIRMATION 

Dr. Curtis C. Lueck Member, Urban Land Planning 
Oversight Committee 

RECOMMEND CONFIRMATION 

Maureen George Member, Arizona Water Banking 
Authority 

RECOMMEND CONFIRMATION 

 
 
 
 
 



Committee on Natural Resources  
              And Transportation 

 March 25, 2003 
2 

Chairman Binder called the meeting to order at 1:35 p.m., and roll call was taken.   
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Senator Binder noted that the February 11, 2003 minutes had been approved without correctly noting 
the position of Ms. Susan Culp on SCR 1012 and SB 1094.  The corrected minutes have been 
distributed.  
 

Chairman Binder moved the minutes of February 11, 2003 be approved, as 
corrected.  Without objection, the minutes were approved as distributed. 

 
EXECUTIVE NOMINATIONS 
 
Peter Michael Napier,  Member, Arizona Racing Commission – RECOMMEND CONFIRMATION 
 
Peter Napier testified that he has been involved in the racing industry for 10-12 years, as a horse 
owner and breeder.  He opined that he could bring something to the industry to bring about 
improvement.  He noted that he is an attorney who represents a number of organizations in the public 
sector in law enforcement such as the Phoenix Law Enforcement Association, the Associated 
Highway Patrol Association in Mesa, Tempe, Chandler, Goodyear, and Surprise.  
 
Senator Binder announced the individuals who registered their position on the nomination 
(Attachment A). 
 

Senator Jarrett moved the Committee on Natural Resources and Transportation 
recommend to the full Senate the CONFIRMATION of Peter Michael Napier as a 
Member of the Arizona Racing Commission.  The motion CARRIED by a roll call 
vote of 7-0-0 (Attachment 1). 

 
Dr. Curtis C. Lueck, Member, Urban Land Planning Oversight Committee – RECOMMEND 
CONFIRMATION 
 
Dora Vasquez, Governor’s Office, testified that Dr. Lueck brings to the Committee vast experience 
in  drainage and engineering.  He has written a number of papers and conducted numerous studies 
throughout the State on engineering.  He holds a PhD. in civil engineering from the University of 
Arizona and is currently the principal of Curtis Lueck and Associates in Tucson. 
 
Senator Binder announced the individuals who registered their position on the nomination 
(Attachment A). 
 

Senator Jarrett moved the Committee on Natural Resources and Transportation 
recommend to the full Senate the CONFIRMATION of Dr. Curtis C. Lueck as a 
Member of the Urban Land Planning Oversight Committee.  The motion CARRIED 
by a roll call vote of 7-0-0 (Attachment 2). 

 
 
 
 
 



Committee on Natural Resources  
              And Transportation 

 March 25, 2003 
3 

Maureen  George,  Member, Arizona Water Banking Authority – RECOMMEND CONFIRMATION 
 
Maureen George testified that she has been practicing water law in Arizona since 1980 and has 
worked as the City Attorney for the Cities of Yuma, Chandler and Goodyear in addition to being in 
private practice with the law firm of Bill Stevens and Associates.  She noted that throughout this time 
she has been involved in water issues.   Upon arriving in Lake Havasu City ten years ago, she along 
with a group of other individuals, formed what was to become the Mohave County Water Authority to 
look out for water interests on a regional basis for the Mohave County area.  The Authority was 
involved in the creation of the Arizona Water Banking Authority.  She opined that her expertise in 
water law, as well her experience of living in Yuma, uniquely qualifies her to represent the river area, 
which this position represents.    
 
Senator Binder announced the individuals who registered their position on the nomination 
(Attachment A). 
 

Senator Jarrett moved the Committee on Natural Resources and Transportation 
recommend to the full Senate the CONFIRMATION of Maureen George as a 
Member of the Arizona Water Banking Authority.  The motion CARRIED by a roll 
call vote of 7-0-0 (Attachment 3). 

 
CONSIDERATION OF BILLS 
 
HB 2386 – dangerous driving behavior; violation – HELD 
 
HB 2476 – agricultural water rights; protected farmland(now: farmland; agricultural water 
rights – DO PASS 
 
Kerri Morey, Natural Resources and Transportation Committee Research Analyst, explained HB 
2476 allows a farm with a conservation or agriculture easement to apply to the Arizona Department of 
Water Resources (ADWR) for designation as protected farmland. The protected farmland designation 
prevents possible reductions in the maximum groundwater allotment for the farm by freezing the 
irrigation efficiency standard.   The bill also prohibits protected farmland from participating in the 
flexibility account program or conveying and retiring their irrigation grandfather rights.  
 
Representative O’Halleran, bill sponsor, testified that in the last legislative session, the Agricultural 
Preservation Act was passed, which allowed development rights by different individuals or groups on 
farms and ranches to maintain them as open space.  The bill clarifies that these farmers will be 
guaranteed their livelihood with water rights into the future.  He noted that initially ADWR had some 
problems with the bill and substantial changes were made within the bill.  He stated that he was 
unaware of any further objections to the bill.  
 
In response to Senator Allen, Representative O’Halleran replied that the bill was drafted as a result of 
a situation occurring on Young's Farm, but the bill is applicable statewide.   
 
Sarah Young Teskey, representing herself and Young’s Farm; testified in support of the bill and 
noted that she is a third generation member of the Young family.  She stated that with the creation of 
ADWR in the 1980s, the State established some programs that encouraged farmers to extinguish 
their irrigation grandfather rights in favor of development.  She remarked that the Federal Farmland 
Protection Program and the Arizona Agricultural Act have attempted to address this issue regarding 



Committee on Natural Resources  
              And Transportation 

 March 25, 2003 
4 

farmers like the Youngs.  She commented that the Young family is proud to be the first farm in 
Arizona to pioneer the use of these programs that protect the family farm from development.  She 
stated that the family hopes to create a positive example for others to follow. HB 2476 is a positive 
step towards building a bridge between the opposing policies of ADWR and the Arizona Agricultural 
Act.   She encouraged the Committee to support the bill.  
 
Senator Binder announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment A). 
 

Senator Jarrett moved HB 2476 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation.  
The motion CARRIED by a roll call vote of 7-0-0 (Attachment 4). 

 
HB 2038 – horse racing licenses – DO PASS AMENDED/STRIKE EVERYTHING 
 
David Lujan, Judiciary Committee Research Analyst, explained the strike everything amendment 
to HB 2038 is an emergency measure that prohibits the superior courts, in class action lawsuits 
relating to tax protests, from including as class members those individuals who have not filed an 
administrative appeal or claim concerning their tax protest.  The amendment further provides that the 
statute of limitations for filing an administrative claim or appeal in a property tax matter will not be 
suspended as a result of filing a class action lawsuit.  He stated the amendment also provides that a 
person aggrieved by an assessment, decision or order of the director of the Arizona Department of 
Revenue (ADOR) may request a hearing on his own behalf but may not request a hearing on behalf 
of other persons. 
 
Representative O’Halleran, bill sponsor, testified that the strike everything amendment will take 
care of the Ladewig case and deal with some of the implications within the case. 
 
Meg Wuebbels, Governor’s Office, testified that she was present in support of the bill.  
 
Senator Binder announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment A). 
 

Senator Jarrett moved HB 2038 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation. 
 
Senator Jarrett moved the 10-page Binder amendment dated 3/20/03 at 4:10 p.m. 
be ADOPTED (Attachment B).  The motion CARRIED by a voice vote. 
 
Senator Jarrett moved HB 2038 be returned with an AS AMENDED, DO PASS 
recommendation.  The motion CARRIED by a roll call vote of 6-0-1 (Attachment 5).   

 
HB 2478 – water status report; DWR – DO PASS 
 
Summer Woodson, Natural Resources and Transportation Committee Research Intern, 
explained HB 2478 requires the director of the Arizona Department of Water Resources (ADWR) to 
present a water supply status report to the relevant committees of each new Arizona Legislature. 
 
Representative O’Halleran, bill sponsor, stated that the water resources of the State are critical 
and the knowledge of the Legislature on this subject is at best, to be described as minimal.  He stated 
that the bill is a way to ensure that the Legislature fully understands the critical nature of the water 
status of Arizona as it stands, not only today, but also in the future.  He stated that the water status 
report is verbal , versus written and that ADWR has stated preparing it will not take up any extra time 



Committee on Natural Resources  
              And Transportation 

 March 25, 2003 
5 

from the agency, as this information is compiled on an on-going basis.  He stated this report will 
enable the Legislature to deal with the issues facing the State on the Colorado River Basin, 
international issues of the Basin, issues with California, Nevada, Colorado, endangered species along 
the Basin, issues with Native American tribes, water settlement issues, rural water management and 
many other issues.  He opined that the current written reports are not read. 
 
Senator Allen commented that she was not totally comfortable with mandating ADWR to give 
presentations to relevant committees.  She stated that this bill, as well as HB 2479, could set a 
precedence for all agencies to be mandated to do the same, and it will get out of hand.  
Representative O’Halleran remarked that tremendous amounts of information are given to the 
Legislature on issues such as health and transportation on a broad prospective.  He stated that it has 
been his experience with the Legislature, that the chairmen routinely do not receive reports on forest 
and water issues.  
 
Referring to HB 2479, a bill on forest issues, Representative O’Halleran noted that in 1999, in an 
informational meeting, the Arizona Legislature was specifically told by the Tonto National Forrest 
representative that the State was going to have catastrophic fires in the coming years unless plans 
were made to deal with forest issues.  He stated that out of that meeting, nothing occurred.  He stated 
that most of the urban legislators do not have an interest in the issues, not from lack of caring, but 
because these issues are not in their districts.   He noted that these issues are not brought forward on 
a consistent basis, and opined that water issues will become the issue of the coming century. This 
attitude may exist because most forest issues are dealt with by a federal delegation, with 
management and emergency philosophies and resources.  He noted that water issues are a 
responsibility of the State Legislature.  
 
Representative O’Halleran commented that as the Chairman of the House Natural Resources, 
Agriculture, Water and Native American Affairs Committee he has had forest and water issues 
discussed in an informative process to educate the nine new legislators.  At the end of this year, 
these legislators will have approximately 20% of the information they need on these issues, to 
understand the magnitude of the problems that the State is facing.   He opined that the State cannot 
afford to retain the old attitudes regarding these issues, which is why he sponsored HB 2478 and HB 
2479.  He urged the Committee to support these bills.  
 
Herb Guenther, Director, ADWR, testified in support of the bill and remarked that given term limits it 
is important to keep legislators educated on natural resource issues and the department looks 
forward to giving these presentations.   
 
Senator Binder announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment A). 
 

Senator Jarrett moved HB 2478 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation.  
The motion CARRIED by a roll call vote of 7-0-0 (Attachment 6). 
 

HB 2479 – forest status reports – DO PASS 
 
Tracey Landers, Natural Resources and Transportation Committee Research Assistant 
Analyst, explained HB 2479 requires the State Forester to collaborate with the Game and Fish 
Department, the Division of Emergency Management, the State Parks Board and the Department of 
Public Safety on a presentation to relevant legislative committees regarding forest management, 
wildfire hazards, prevention and suppression issues.  



Committee on Natural Resources  
              And Transportation 

 March 25, 2003 
6 

 
Representative O’Halleran, bill sponsor, remarked that this issue is one that Arizona will be dealing 
with for the next twenty years.  He commented that tremendous amounts of money would be spent on 
forest issues nationwide, as well as within the State.  He stated that more importantly, these issues 
will impact residents’ insurance, the State’s watersheds and many other issues that the Legislature 
has not dealt with over the past few decades.  
 
Senator Binder announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment A). 
 

Senator Jarrett moved HB 2479 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation.  
The motion CARRIED by a roll call vote of 6-0-1 (Attachment 7). 

 
HB 2480 – multijurisdictional water facilities districts – DO PASS AMENDED 
 
Kerri Morey, Natural Resources and Transportation Committee Research Analyst, explained HB 
2400 allows two or more municipal water providers (MWP) to consider forming a district for the 
construction, operation and maintenance of water facilities for drinking water or wastewater 
conveyance, treatment or storage, reclamation and reuse of water or recharge and recovery.  She 
noted that a district may do any of the following:  
a) Construct and operate water-related facilities 
b) Establish, charge, revise and collect user fees, rates or charges 
c) Enter into contracts, agreements 
d) Accept gifts, grants and donations 
e) Expend money for water-related facilities 
f) Sell, lease and dispose of real or personal property 
g) Pay expenses and employ staff 
h) Use public easements and rights-of-way 
i) Enter into grants and loans with any state, federal or local entity 
 
Ms. Morey commented that the bill prohibits the district from engaging in the retail sale of water, 
exercising the power of eminent domain or using district monies to acquire water rights.  The district 
is allowed to finance projects through:  
a) Sale of revenue bonds 
b) State or federal grants, loans and contributions 
c) Private gifts, grants and donations 
d) User and landowner fees and charges 
 
Ms. Morey explained the 17-line Binder amendment dated 3/24/03 at 4:01 p.m. clarifies that MWP 
cannot leave a district after it is formed, but that specific parcels of property may be removed from a 
district by modifying district boundaries. The amendment also makes technical and clarifying 
changes.  
 
In response to Senator Blendu, Ms. Morey stated that he was correct in that there are limits on the 
amount of bonds that the State can issue.  She noted that these districts are exempt from local 
government debt and bonding limits, so they would not be adding to the State’s current liability.  
 
Senator Blendu asked if there was a mechanism within the bill that would limit the bond amount the 
districts could issue.  Representative O’Halleran, bill sponsor, stated that the bonds have to be 
issued in accordance to the general plan of the district.  He remarked that the general plan of the 



Committee on Natural Resources  
              And Transportation 

 March 25, 2003 
7 

district clearly identifies the infrastructure to be built, which establishes a correlation between need 
and revenue bonding.  He noted that the reason the high level of bonding rating was inserted was to 
ensure that these projects are reviewed to the highest standards possible.  He noted that there have 
been numerous meetings with the stakeholders regarding the bill to address all concerns for over two 
years.   
 
Stuart Goodman, Southern Arizona Water Users Association, testified in support of the bill and 
the amendment.  He remarked this legislation is based on 2.5 years worth of work with major 
stakeholders.  He stated that this bill is a consensus bill and has received strong support throughout 
the process.  He commented that the bill addresses the major issues by avoiding eminent domain, 
general obligation bonding, and taxing authority issues.  He noted that the Arizona Tax Research 
Association (ATRA) is neutral on the bill and opined that this demonstrates a comprehensive 
approach to working out all of the issues.  
 
Senator Binder announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment A). 
 

Senator Jarrett moved HB 2480 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation. 
 
Senator Jarrett moved the 17-line Binder amendment dated 3/24/03 at 4:01 p.m. be 
ADOPTED (Attachment C).  The motion CARRIED by a voice vote. 
 
Senator Jarrett moved HB 2480 be returned with an AS AMENDED, DO PASS 
recommendation.  The motion CARRIED by a roll call vote of 7-0-0 (Attachment 8). 

 
HB 2088 – well administration and enforcement – HELD 
 
Senator Binder announced that testimony would be taken on the bill, and that it would be heard next 
week. 
 
Kerri Morey, Natural Resources and Transportation Committee Research Analyst, explained a 
notice of intention to drill (NOI) must be filed with ADWR before drilling, deepening or replacing wells 
outside AMAs and for exempt wells inside active management areas (AMAs.) All other wells (non-
exempt wells) inside AMAs must obtain a well permit from ADWR. Currently, fees for NOIs and well 
permits for new or replacement wells are set by the Director of ADWR in rule. According to ADWR, 
the current NOI fee is $10 and the application fee for well permits is $50, plus an additional fee of $30 
for the permit. All fees are currently deposited in the State general fund.  HB 2088 establishes a $50 
filing fee for NOIs and for well permits and the fees are deposited in the newly established, non-
appropriated well administration and enforcement fund for use by ADWR in administering and 
enforcing well regulations.  The Joint Legislative Budget Committee (JLBC) estimates that HB 2088 
diverts $55,000 annually from the State general fund. 
 
Ms. Morey noted that the bill contains a proposition 108 clause and requires a two-thirds vote of the 
House and the Senate for enactment.  
 
Senator Blendu asked if the fee was originally set for $150, and if so, asked why it was changed.  Ms. 
Morey replied that the bill originally had a fee of $120, which was amended in the House to $150 and 
was then reduced to $50 on the floor.   
 



Committee on Natural Resources  
              And Transportation 

 March 25, 2003 
8 

Representative O’Halleran, bill sponsor, testified that the fee of $150 is what is needed, but in 
order to get the bill passed out of the House of Representatives the amount was reduced.  He noted 
that Mr. Guenther and Pat Hill have been in negotiations and he deferred further explanation to Mr. 
Guenther. 
 
Representative O’Halleran commented that there are over 160,000 wells in the State.  The State’s 
groundwater aquifers are critical to the State’s water supply and this legislation will protect them. He 
stated that the fee has not been changed for twenty years.   
 
Herb Guenther, Director, ADWR, testified in support of the bill and explained that this legislation is 
an attempt to repair damage done because of the budget crisis and cuts to the agency.  He noted that 
in November of last year, the agency had to terminate the well drilling staff that process all of the 
permits, conduct field inspections and evaluate potential cross-contamination and construction 
standards of wells in the State.  This division of ADWR is vital to maintain safe water resources within 
the State. 
 
Mr. Guenther remarked that this division of ADWR needs 6.5 full time employees.  He commented 
that the application program will be placed on ADWR’s web site, which will assist with the estimated 
4,800 – 6,000 applications that area placed annually.  Additionally, the data base will be updated, as 
requested by the well-drilling community, to assist them in evaluating drilling conditions, any 
significant changes in the quality of water, special construction standards and data relating to other 
drill sites.  
 
HB 2196 – pollution prevention; reporting date – HELD 
 
Senator Binder announced that testimony would be taken on the bill, and that it would be heard next 
week. 
 
Summer Woodson, Natural Resources and Transportation Committee Research Intern, 
explained the strike everything amendment to HB 2196 requires municipal and county land use plans 
to accommodate the mining of industrial materials from identified deposits in currently undeveloped 
areas. 
 
Rusty Bowers, Executive Director, Arizona Rock Products Association (ARPA), testified in 
support of the bill.  He gave a charming rendition of Hans Christian Anderson’s, The Three Little Pigs.  
His version was entitled The Three Little Javelinas where the first two young javelinas used 
indigenous building supplies not meant for housing, (cane, ocotillo, mesquite and palo verde 
branches).  The third javelina discovered alluvial deposits, numerous types of sandstone, lava 
deposits, lead and limestone.  The third little javelina discovered that limestone has appropriate 
pyrographic and shear strength and can be used in a variety of situations. i.e.: in building highways, 
use within bar-b-queues, pools, on tiles, on roofs, to make cement blocks for walls and when mixed 
with sand is a ready mix concrete for floors, driveways and can be used as grouting material.    
 
Mr. Bowers commented that the three little javelinas could be compared to how some cities are 
planned.   A site is chosen for its beauty and the availability of wealthy developers and before long, a 
city plan is created, but other items needed are not always considered.  He stated that two essential 
items needed are an assured water supply and aggregates.  He commented that aggregate consists 
of sand, gravel, or crushed rock and can only be found in areas with certain geologic conditions.  He 
remarked that the Senate building is made up from 40-50 thousand tons of aggregate.  He 



Committee on Natural Resources  
              And Transportation 

 March 25, 2003 
9 

commented that production of sand and gravel is directly related to population growth and the need 
for aggregate is enormous.  He noted that a typical 1,500 square foot house requires more than 300 
tons of aggregate and 20 truckloads of concrete.  He distributed a handout entitled Arizona Rock 
Products Association (Attachment D).  He noted the information contained within the handout outlines 
the many uses of aggregate in the State.  In addition, he distributed a handout entitled Impact of the 
Rock Products Industry on the Arizona Economy (Attachment E). 
 
Senator Cannell asked what happens to the cities that already have approved plans if this legislation 
is passed.  Mr. Bowers commented that he would prefer some other accommodation rather than what 
is in this legislation.   Mr. Bowers remarked that it is for that reason that he has requested to meet 
with the Committee members to discuss other possible solutions.  
 
Dr. Larry Fellows, Director and State Geologist, Arizona Geological Survey, distributed a 
handout entitled Arizona Geology, Vol. 32, No. 4, Winter 2002, Published by the Arizona Geological 
Survey (Attachment F).  He testified that the mission of his agency is to inform and advise the public 
of the geologic character of Arizona in order to improve understanding and encourage the prudent 
use of Arizona’s mineral resources.  He remarked that in order to accomplish this, the agency has 
active geologic mapping and characterization programs that are now giving emphasis to urban areas.  
He stated that the agency participates in a national geological mapping program in which the agency 
provides 50% of the funding with the remaining funding coming from the National Geological Mapping 
Program.  There is an advisory committee that directs the Arizona Geological Survey into the areas 
that have the highest mapping priority and it identified the Phoenix-Tucson corridor as an area of 
priority because it has 80% of the State’s population in 20% of the State.  He noted that this effort has 
been ongoing for the last ten years and the project is almost completed.  One of the main issues that 
have been brought forth from this project is the need to identify potential aggregate resources.  He 
stated that this is being done on the Agency’s geologic maps on a regional approach in the Phoenix-
Tucson urban area with the potential for development.  He stated that all aggregate resources are the 
product of geologic processes and in the areas that do have these resources, the deposits are 
substantially different, due to how it was deposited by the streams.   He noted that these resources 
are not located everywhere and opined that it is appropriate to give special consideration to the 
aggregate resources.  He opined that allowing development to take place over perfectly good 
aggregate sources is not a wise use of the State’s resources.  
 
Senator Blendu commented that even the best planning might look good on a piece of paper but 
unless you have the materials nearby, they would have to be hauled in from somewhere else, which 
adds cost.  Since these sources are not everywhere, it only makes sense to have these locations as 
part of the planning process.  Dr. Fellows remarked that another factor in this situation is the 
production of concrete.  He noted that this is the mixing of cement and aggregate, which cannot be 
hauled for over 90 minutes, otherwise it will start to set.  Therefore, it needs to be produced from a 
local source.  Senator Blendu remarked that the Sierra Club, along with a number of cities including 
the City of Peoria are against the bill.  He opined that obtaining middle ground on this issue would be 
nearly impossible to achieve.   
 
Mr. Bowers commented that on March 20, 2003 in a Planning and Zoning Commission meeting in 
Peoria, the Commission accepted the work of City staff, which includes a 300-foot setback for 
aggregate in residential zoning or communities.  In a 40-acre parcel, it leaves 12 acres that could be 
mined.  He noted that Peoria has become the second largest city in Maricopa County due to their 
aggressive annexation process.  Currently, the City has annexed north near Lake Pleasant and is 
working south to the Aqua Fria River.  This could be problematic relative to the need for aggregate to 



Committee on Natural Resources  
              And Transportation 

 March 25, 2003 
10 

support growth.  He stated that serious discussion still needs to take place to start establishing a 
parallel channel of planning so that these aggregate deposits are not kept by the City of Peoria.  
 
Senator Binder appointed a work group consisting of Senator Jarrett and Mr. Bowers to review further 
aspects of this issue.  
 
HB 2267 – insurance companies; towed vehicle retrieval(now: towed vehicle retrieval; 
insurance companies) – DO PASS AMENDED 
 
Tracey Landers, Natural Resources and Transportation Committee Research Assistant 
Analyst, explained HB 2267 requires a towing company to release a towed vehicle to an insurance 
company representative who provides the required identification after payment of fees.    
 
Ms. Landers explained the 16-line Binder amendment dated 3/24/03 at 1:42 p.m. makes technical 
and clarifying changes. 
 
Senator Binder announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment A). 
 
David Childers, Farmers National Association of Independent Insurers, testified that this bill is 
legislation that has risen out of certain problems that have faced the insurance industry associated 
with vehicles that have been towed and stored.  In cases where an automobile is involved in an 
accident and damaged to where it cannot be driven, it is often towed to a storage facility where it 
stays until the insurance company is prepared to remove it to a repair facility.  He stated that in past 
situations, the storage facility is reluctant to release vehicles without the owner being present.  This 
bill develops standards to address this issue.  
 

Senator Jarrett moved HB 2267 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation. 
 
Senator Jarrett moved the 16-line Binder amendment dated 3/24/03 at 1:42 p.m. be 
ADOPTED (Attachment G).  The motion CARRIED by a voice vote. 
 
Senator Jarrett moved HB 2267 be returned with an AS AMENDED, DO PASS 
recommendation.  The motion CARRIED by a roll call vote of 4-0-3 (Attachment 9). 

 
HB 2328 – income tax checkoff; state parks – DO PASS 
 
Denisse Gee, Finance Committee Research Analyst, explained HB 2328 allows an individual 
taxpayer to contribute a portion of their income tax refund to the State parks enhancement fund.  The 
mechanism by which they could make this contribution is through a tax checkoff.  She distributed a 
handout of an Arizona Resident Personal Income Tax Return, Form 140, (Attachment H), which is 
highlighted at the area where other established tax checkoffs are located and an income tax 
collections data table of FY 1997-98 through FY 2001-02. 
 
Representative Graf, bill sponsor, commented that due to cuts in the 2003 budget, State Parks 
Department lost money, and some of the parks were closed.  In the following Special Session, funds 
were allocated back to the Parks Department and the parks were re-opened.  He stated that the 
Department of Revenue (DOR) has stated that there is room for one more checkoff on the tax form.  
He remarked that would afford an opportunity for the State Parks Department to receive a little more 



Committee on Natural Resources  
              And Transportation 

 March 25, 2003 
11 

money.   He noted that all seven parks that were closed last year were in southeastern Arizona, 
which affected his district.  
 
Senator Jarrett remarked that she has similar legislation proceeding through the process with 
donations of this sort being given to the Department of Education (ADE). She noted that there is a 
limit to the dollar amount that could be given and the taxpayers are given the choice of selecting more 
than one checkoff. 
 
In response to Senator Jarrett, Representative Graf stated that he would be willing to work with her 
on a floor amendment to allow the taxpayer to designate the amount of funds to whichever option 
they choose.   
 
Senator Binder announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment A). 
 

Senator Jarrett moved HB 2328 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation.  
The motion CARRIED by a roll call vote of 3-2-2 (Attachment 10). 

 
HB 2381 – safe drinking water – DO PASS 
 
Tracey Landers, Natural Resources and Transportation Committee Research Assistant 
Analyst, explained HB 2381 eliminates the requirement that ADEQ notify a public water system of a 
change in water quality compliance status to comply with the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) and 
makes other changes to conform to the SDWA. 
 
Jim Buster, Legislative Liaison, Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ), testified 
that this bill will help ADEQ maintain primacy to run the federal drinking water programs without 
having to trasnfer the management of the program to the United States Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA) Region 9 office in San Francisco.   He noted that periodically the EPA reviews the 
statutes and recommends changes so that Arizona can maintain primacy over the program.   The 
changes are technical in nature.   He noted the only comments made regarding the bill came from the 
House with regard to the deletion of the obligation to notify if a water system is out of compliance.  He 
stated that in practice, ADEQ will still do this, but the EPA wanted this section removed because it 
gives a violator an affirmative defense against enforcement.  
 
Senator Binder announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment A). 
 

Senator Jarrett moved HB 2381 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation.  
The motion CARRIED by a roll call vote of 4-0-3 (Attachment 11). 

 
Without objection, the meeting adjourned at 3:25 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

Tracey Moulton 
Committee Secretary 

 
(Tapes and attachments on file in the Secretary of the Senate's Office/Resource Center, Room, 115.) 

 



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.7
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BlackItalic
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /ArialUnicodeMS
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Impact
    /LucidaConsole
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TimesNewRomanMT-ExtraBold
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e55464e1a65876863768467e5770b548c62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc666e901a554652d965874ef6768467e5770b548c52175370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA (Utilizzare queste impostazioni per creare documenti Adobe PDF adatti per visualizzare e stampare documenti aziendali in modo affidabile. I documenti PDF creati possono essere aperti con Acrobat e Adobe Reader 5.0 e versioni successive.)
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020be44c988b2c8c2a40020bb38c11cb97c0020c548c815c801c73cb85c0020bcf4ace00020c778c1c4d558b2940020b3700020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken waarmee zakelijke documenten betrouwbaar kunnen worden weergegeven en afgedrukt. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents suitable for reliable viewing and printing of business documents.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


